III. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

Cabot Oil & Gas Corporation and Cranberry Pipeline Corporation assert that the Circuit 

Court ofRaleigh County ("Circuit Court") erred as follows: 

1. The Circuit Court erred in ruling that the doctrine ofres judicata did not apply to a 

dispute previously decided by a fmal and binding arbitration award. Not only did the Court err in 

refusing to enforce a final and binding arbitration award, it then applied what it deemed to be a 

limited exception to res judicata that is inapplicable and not recognized by West Virginia law. 

2. Even if the Circuit Court could have ordered a second arbitration of the same 

dispute, the Court improperly instructed the arbitration panel on how to apply the law and directed 

its scope ofauthority. The trial court is limited to determining the threshold issues ofthe existence 

of a valid arbitration agreement and whether the claims fall within its scope. Syl. Pt. 2, State ex 

ref. TD Ameritrade, Inc. v. Kaufman, 692 S.E.2d 293 CW. Va. 2010). Despite this limited role, 

the court went further and improperly directed the arbitration panel to recognize and apply Tawney 

as having "trumped" Wellman. Such a substantive determination is not within the court's 

jurisdiction once it has decided that the issues are proper for arbitration. 

3. The Circuit Court erred by ordering all issues to be arbitrated, even though some 

issues arise from contracts that do not contain an arbitration provision. The Respondent's claims 

before the Circuit Court included claims relevant to a 1977 Agreement regarding construction and 

maintenance ofpipelines. The 1977 Agreement does not contain an arbitration clause, and it does 

not incorporate by reference the 1929 Lease's arbitration clause. Despite the lack of an agreement 

by the parties to arbitrate matters relevant to the 1977 Agreement, the Circuit Court summarily 

ordered all claims, including those that are related to the 1977 Agreement and Petitioner's 

affinnative defenses to those claims, to be arbitrated. 
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IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

A. The 1929 Lease and the 1983 Reorganization 

On April 10, 1929, Beaver Coal Co., Limited ("Beaverll), a large land holding company, 

entered into a lease with Godfrey L. Cabot, Inc. ("Godfrey Cabot"), granting Godfrey L. Cabot the 

right to mine, explore, extract, and remove oil and gas from 11,994 acres of its land. l.A. at 440

60 (the "1929 Lease"). Paragraph 22 of the 1929 Lease contains a clause that requires the parties 

to arbitrate any question regarding "the performance by the Lessee of any of the Articles of [the] 

lease, or ofany covenant contained in any ofsaid Articles ... [.]" Id. at 458. The arbitration clause 

states that "[t]he decisions and awards of such arbitrators, or any two of them, shall be final and 

conclusive and binding upon the parties hereto, with no right of appeal[.]" Id. 

Since the date of the 1929 Lease, there have been twenty (20) supplements, releases, 

amendments, and agreements, which have modified certain terms and conditions and resulted in a 

net increase in acreage so that the lease now covers 17,368 acres (This lease as modified is referred 

to herein as the "Lease II or the 111929 Leasell). See l.A. at 631-848. On August 15,1960, Godfrey 

Cabot sought, in writing, Beaver's consent for its assignment of the Lease to Cabot Corporation 

(IICabot Corp. II), a Delaware corporation wholly owned by Godfrey L. Cabot. J.A. at 563. That 

August 1960 writing declared that Cabot Corp. would "assume and become responsible for all 

debts, obligations and liabilities of and conduct all the functions and business activities formerly 

performed by [the merging companies].11 Id. Beaver did not object. 

Cabot Corp. underwent an internal reorganization pursuant to which it assigned rights to 

wholly-owned subsidiaries. In 1982 Cabot Corp. assigned to Cabot Oil & Gas Corporation 

("Cabot") its oil and gas leases and producing wells, and, in 1983, Cabot Corp. assigned to its 

{B2906367.l } 2 

http:companies].11


wholly-owned subsidiary, Cranberry, its associated pipeline facilities (referred to hereinafter as 

lithe 1983 Reorganization ll). l.A. at 469-512. 

After the 1983 Reorganization, in August 1991, Beaver and Cabot executed a Ratification 

of the 1929 Lease, whereby it was acknowledged that the 1929 Lease was now owned by Cabot 

and it was valid and in full force and effect. l.A. at 513. Since the ratification of the 1929 Lease in 

1991, Cabot has continuously operated and produced gas from the 1929 Lease; Cabot has issued 

royalty checks to Beaver which have been accepted and cashed; and after a dispute regarding 

royalties that resulted in an arbitration decision in 2004, Beaver has accepted and cashed the 

royalty checks that were computed and paid in accordance with the ruling of the arbitrators. l.A. 

at 367. 

B. The 1977 Agreement 

On February 1, 1977, Cabot Corp. and Beaver entered into a document styled as an 

IIAgreementll whereby Beaver granted the right to use, construct, and maintain a pipeline across a 

certain portion of Beaver's property (the 111977 Agreement ll). l.A. at 461-68. As part of the 1983 

Reorganization, an April 4, 1983 Deed (the 111983 Deed ll), publicly recorded in May 1983, 

conveyed to Cranberry lands in various counties (as well as the fixtures and improvements thereon) 

and all of the gathering lines from the wellhead, all pipeline facilities owned by Cabot Corp. 

(together with related right of ways, easements, permits, licenses, and privileges pertaining to 

installation, maintenance, and operation of said systems, and the leases, wells, pipelines and all 

the necessary equipment appurtenant thereto which make up the Raleigh County Storage Pool and 

the X-I Storage Pool in Putnam County). l.A. at 480-502. Beginning in 1983, Cranberry assumed 

pipeline operations on Beaver's property. The 1977 Agreement does not contain an arbitration 

clause, and it does not reference or incorporate the 1929 Lease or its arbitration clause. ld. 
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C. Royalty Claims and Arbitration 

On July 11, 2001, Beaver, pursuant to the 1929 Lease's arbitration clause, brought an 

arbitration proceeding against Cabot to determine whether Cabot's calculation ofroyalty payments 

was proper and whether it could deduct post-production expenses from Beaver's royalty. See lA. 

at 1200-33. The proceedings involved hearings, the examination of witnesses presented by both 

sides, voluminous exhibits and briefings, post-hearing and reply briefing, supplemental briefing 

and reply briefing, responses to arbitrators' inquiries, memoranda for enforcement ofthe arbitration 

award and opposition to enforcement as well as related reply briefmg. Id. 1 The three-member 

arbitration panel issued their decision on July 27, 2004, concluding that Cabot could deduct certain 

post-production expenses from the royalty, but the panel also concluded the amount of the 

deductions should be reduced, and Cabot was ordered to refund Beaver for the underpayments (the 

"Arbitration Decision"). J.A. at 1200-33. The Arbitration Decision applied the then-existing law, 

including Wellman v. Energy Res., Inc., 557 S.E.2d 254 (W. Va. 2001), and concluded it was the 

intent of the sophisticated business entities to allow certain post-production deductions, but that 

the amount charged had to be reasonable and actually incurred. Id The arbitrators also issued a 

"Final Award" in 2005 denying Beaver's request for an award for attorneys' fees. J.A. at 1344-52. 

On June 15,2006, the West Virginia Supreme Court ofAppeals held, in Estate o/Tawney 

v. Columbia Natural Resources, Inc., that certain language in an oil and gas lease drafted by the 

lessee (e.g., that lessor's royalty is to be calculated 'at the well,' 'at the wellhead,' or similar 

language, or that the royalty is 'an amount equal to 1/8 of the price, net all costs beyond the 

wellhead') is ambiguous, and thus ineffective to allow the lessee thereunder to deduct from lessor's 

1 The arbitration between the parties was a private arbitration and subject to a confidentiality agreement with respect 
to various documents and exhibits. Accordingly, many of the documents are not a part of the Circuit Court's record, 
but a discussion ofthe involved-nature of the arbitration is contained in the Arbitration Decision contained ill the Joint 
Appendix; J.A. at 1200-33. 
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royalty "any portion of the costs incurred between the wellhead and the point of sale. II Estate of 

Tawney v. Columbia Natural Resources, 633 S.E.2d 22 (W. Va. 2006). 

On March 7, 2008, Beaver filed this civil action for damages, alleging Cabot was making 

"wrongful deduction[s] of post-production monetary costs and volumes" resulting in an 

lIunderpayment of royalties II , which is the exact same issue that had been previously decided as 

part ofthe final and binding Arbitration Decision from 2004. J.A. at 32-50, 1200-33. 

D. Procedural History Before the Circuit Court of Raleigh County 

The Cabot Defendants previously removed this civil action to federal court and filed a 

motion to dismiss this civil action. J.A. at 25-87. Briefing on the Motion to Dismiss occurred 

mostly in federal court, but the case was remanded with the Motion to Dismiss pending. J.A. at 

113-122. Pursuant to an Agreed Order, the parties submitted proposed findings of fact and 

conclusions of law to the Circuit Court related to the pending Motion to Dismiss. lA. at 1766

1767. On April 20, 2010, the Circuit Court ofRaleigh County issued an order denying the motion, 

ruling in relevant part that Tawney constituted an intervening change in the law, creating an 

exception to the finality of the arbitration decision and the doctrine of res judicata. J.A. at 186

199. ("Res judicata is no defense where, between the time of the first judgment and the second, 

there has been an intervening decision or a change in the law creating an altered situation." (citing 

Comm'r v. Arundel-Brooks Concrete Corp., 152 F.2d 225 (4th Cir. 1945) and Freeman on 

Judgments (5th Ed. 1925), § 713). Accordingly, the Circuit Court concluded that IIdue to the 

intervening change of law in the Tawney decision ... when viewing the facts in a light most 

favorable to Beaver, Beaver at this time states a claim upon which relief may be granted against 

Cabot for underpayment of royalties. II fd. 
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After some discovery and motion practice, on December 11, 2013, the Circuit Court 

entered an Agreed Order Outlining Legal Issues and Setting Briefing Schedule that identified five 

legal issues between the parties that should be resolved in order to proceed in a timely manner. 

J.A. at 355-357. The issues were: "(1) Whether Cabot's 1983 assignment to its wholly-owned 

subsidiary, Cranberry Pipeline Corporation, constitutes a violation of the 1929 Lease or the 1977 

License Agreement; (2) whether the 1929 Lease and/or 1977 License Agreement have been 

forfeited or terminated due to the assignment, or, alternatively, whether Beaver's remedies are 

limited to those compensable damages, if any, which may be allowed by law and proven at trial; 

(3) whether Beaver's claims regarding the assignment are barred by any affirmative defenses 

asserted by Cabot, including ratification of the lease, statutes of limitations, laches, estoppel, 

waiver; (4) whether the award of the arbitrators regarding royalty payments between the parties, 

operates as a res judicata or bar to the re-litigation of the issues decided by the Arbitration Panel, 

and whether the Court's ruling in this regard is suitable for certification to the West Virginia 

Supreme Court of Appeals; and (5) if not barred by res judicata, whether monetary or volumetric 

deductions made by Cabot from Beaver's royalties were improper under the terms of the 1929 

Lease and West Virginia law, and if so, the time period for which Beaver is entitled to damages." 

Id 

The Cabot entities filed a Motion for Partial Summary Judgment and a supporting 

memorandum regarding the five legal issues, which again asserted, anlOng other arguments, that 

Beaver's civil action related to the alleged underpayment of royalties was barred by the prior fmal 

and binding Arbitration Decision and precluded by the doctrine of res judicata. l.A. at 358-402. 

The Plaintiff responded to the partial motion on February 18,2014. J.A. at 1613-35. Cabot replied 

three days later. l.A. at 1636-1649. Beaver also submitted a memorandum to the court addressing 
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the five legal issues, and the Cabot entities responded to the memorandum. After this extensive 

briefing, a hearing was held before the Circuit Court on February 21, 2014. J.A. at 1650-1765. 

An Agreed Order entered on March 27, 2014, required the parties to submit proposed 

orders relating to the pending Motion for Partial Summary Judgment, and the parties submitted 

their respective proposed orders. J.A. at 1766-67. The Cabot entities objected to certain incorrect 

and authorized representations contained in Beaver's proposed order, Beaver responded to the 

objection, and then the parties attempted to informally resolve the matter. l.A. at 1768-1808; 

1859-80. Unable to do so, the parties sought a status conference over a year later in January 2016. 

J.A. at 1881-83. On August 25,2016, the Circuit Court issued its Final Order, and directed the 

clerk to remove the case from its docket. J.A. at 1887-1916. 

The Final Order recites some of the procedural history of the case, incorporates by 

reference the Order Denying Motion to Dismiss, and ultimately disposes of all claims before it by 

stating it lacked jurisdiction and ordering arbitration ofall the issues and claims presented. J .A. at 

1887-1916. The Final Order again disagreed with the Petitioners' argument that the arbitration 

award was final and binding and is res judicata and that the Circuit Court, or any adjudicatory 

body for that matter, lacks jurisdiction of the barred claims. In addition, the Final Order referred 

all claims to arbitration on the basis of the arbitration clause contained in the 1929 Lease. The 

Circuit Court's referral to arbitration includes all Beaver's claims arising from the 1977 

Agreement, and Petitioner's affirmative defenses to those claims. The 1977 Agreement has no 

arbitration clause. J.A. at 461-68. 

The nature of the Final Order entered by the Circuit Court is unique because the parties and 

the Circuit Court agreed, by entry ofthe Agreed Order Outlining Legal Issues andSetting Briefing 

Schedule entered on December 11, 2013, to submit to the jurisdiction of the Circuit Court on five 
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distinct legal issues where each party argued the material issues in dispute related to their claims 

and defenses were not in dispute. lA. at 355-57. This was agreed to because the parties and Court 

found that ''the resolution of certain outstanding legal issues is necessary in order for the case to 

proceed in a timely fashion." Id. On the five legal issues, the Petitioners Cabot and Cranberry 

moved for Partial Summary Judgment, which resulted in the entry ofthe Final Order. J.A. at 358

402 ("On January 13, 2016, action in this case was reinitiated with the filing of a request for this 

Court to rule upon the five issues raised in the Motion for Summary Judgment filed by the 

defendants.). 

v. SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT 

In 2004, the arbitration panel found that certain post-production expenses from royalties 

were allowable, but that pursuant to this Court's ruling Wellman v. Energy Resources, Inc., 210 

W.Va. 200, 557 S.E.2d 254 (2001), certain deductions, or the amount of the deductions, were not 

allowable. The arbitration panel set a specific formula to determine allowable deductions and 

designate those which were not allowable going forward. The parties operated pursuant to the 

Arbitration Decision from 2004 but the Respondent brought suit in the Circuit Court of Raleigh 

County in 2008 alleging it was entitled to recalculation ofroyalties pursuant to this Court's holding 

in Tawney, 633 S.E.2d 22 (W. Va. 2006). 

The 1929 Lease at issue is not a typical form lease utilized by an oil and gas lessee, and it 

is twenty pages long and was negotiated by sophisticated commercial parties. The 1929 Lease 

states that "[t]he decisions and awards of such arbitrators, or any two of them, shall be final and 

conclusive and binding upon the parties hereto, with no right of appeal[.]" Notwithstanding, 

Respondent argued that the Tawney case revived its claim. The Circuit Court agreed, finding that 

the law expressed in Tawney "went beyond the specific issues identified in the Wellman case and 
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identified and resolved issues that specifically related to the imposition of costs not specifically 

identified in the Wellman case." Order, p. 15. Despite two attempts by Petitioners to enforce the 

finality of the Arbitration Decision and the doctrine of res judicata, the Respondent's claims were 

allowed to stand based on an allegedly intervening change of law and an exception never before 

recognized or adopted by the Supreme Court of Appeals, let alone in the face of an arbitration 

provision that expressly waives appeal and establishes finality. Accordingly, Petitioners seek 

review of the Circuit Court's failure to apply the doctrine of finality and res judicata to the issue 

of royalty calculations and its order that the issue to be arbitrated again. 

Even if the royalty dispute could legally be arbitrated a second time, the Circuit Court 

exceeded the scope ofits authority by ordering that the arbitrator conduct arbitration in accordance 

with the directive of the Final Order's conclusions of law, which also incorporate the conclusions 

oflaw in the Order Denying Motion to Dismiss. Specifically, the Circuit Court directed the panel 

to consider Tawney to have more precedential weight than Wellman. 

Finally, the Circuit Court summarily compelled arbitration on all of Beaver's remaining 

claims and Cabot's affirmative defense, including those claims brought under the 1977 Agreement, 

which does not contain an arbitration clause. The 1977 Agreement also does not in any way 

incorporate by reference the 1929 Lease or its arbitration clause, meaning the referral of the 

entirety of Beaver's claims to arbitration pursuant to the clause contained in the 1929 Lease is 

clear error. As such, the claims related to the 1977 Agreement and the affirmative defenses 

asserted by the Petitioners should be remanded to the Circuit Court for further consideration 

consistent with the respective contract language. 

VI. STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 
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The legal, factual, and complex procedural issues presented in this Petition are unique and 

they merit oral argument. The exception to the finality of an arbitration award relied upon by the 

Circuit Court has never been adopted by the Supreme Court of Appeals of West Virginia and 

would allow all arbitration decisions to the reopened and relitigated based on any alleged "changes 

of law." Arbitration would no longer be a viable final process to resolve business disputes. The 

implications raised herein are a matter of public importance regarding the fmality of arbitration 

decisions and the reliability and enforceability ofjudgments. The Petitioners request oral argument 

pursuant to Rule 20 of the Rules ofAppellate Procedure. 

Many issues raised in this appeal have significant overlap with issues raised by Beaver 

Coal Company in its Notice of Appeal, assigned as Appeal No. 16-0905 by this Court. For this 

reason, the parties submitted a Joint Appendix, but the Petitioners believe that judicial efficiency 

in these appeals would be best served if the oral arguments in both appeals are held jointly. 

VII. ARGUMENT 

A. Standard of Review. 

This Court's review of the Order entered by the Circuit Court is de novo. See Syi. Pt. 1, 

Painter v. Peavy, 451 S.E.2d 755 (W. Va. 1994) ("A circuit court's entry of summary judgment is 

reviewed de novo."). The Circuit Court's Final Order decided the issues raised in the Motionfor 

Partial Summary Judgment, and resulted in the removal ofthe case from the Circuit Court's docket 

and ordering all remaining claims be sent to arbitration. J .A. at 1887-1916. "Although our standard 

of review for summary judgment remains de novo, a circuit court's order granting summary 

judgment must set out factual findings sufficient to permit meaningful appellate review. Findings 

offact, by necessity, include those facts which the circuit court finds relevant, determinative ofthe 

issues and undisputed." Stoutv. RavenswoodAluminum Corp., 428, 533 S.E.2d 359, 360 (W. Va. 
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2000). The Final Order contained substantive findings of fact and conclusions of law sufficient to 

permit this Court meaningful appellate review. 

Additionally, while the scope of Circuit Court's review should have been limited to the 

summary judgment standard, the Final Order incorrectly found that "[t]he parties expressly agreed 

and did empower this Court to act as the fmder of fact and to resolve all factual issues presented. 

This Court was further empowered and was specifically requested to fmally adjudicate the

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