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

II. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

A. Standard of review. This Court should review the final order and the 

ultimate disposition under an abuse of discretion standard, and review the circuit court's 

underlying factual findings under a clearly erroneous standard. Questions of law are subject to a 

de novo review. 

B. Beaver's claim for damages for underpayment of royalties after the date of 

the 2004 Arbitration Award is a new claim based on the facts and law after the Award. This 

claim is not barred by res judicata and the FAA has no application to it. 

C. Beaver's claim for damages during the period covered by the 2004 Award, 

1987 to 2004, meets a clear exception to the res judicata doctrine. Moreover, the FAA does not 

apply and, even if it did, Beaver is not seeking to vacate the Award. (Rather, Beaver seeks to 

enforce the operative language of the 2004 Arbitration Award consistent with current law.) 

D. Beaver's claims are not precluded by the doctrine of res judicata. 

E. The Circuit Court did not improperly direct the arbitrators' scope of 

mqUlry. 

F. The Circuit Court erred by ordering all of Beaver's claims to arbitration. 
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III. STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT 


Beaver requests oral argument pursuant to Rule 20 of the West Virginia Rules of 

Appellate Procedure. The legal issues are fundamental, and some present new issues of law. 

Accordingly, Beaver respectfully submits that the decisional process would be significantly 

aided by oral argument. 

IV. ARGUMENT 

A. 	 STANDARD OF REVIEW 

By Order dated August 25, 2016, the Circuit Court ordered all claims to 

arbitration and ordered the matter removed from the court's docket. In addition, the circuit court 

made several findings to which Defendants now appeal- specifically, the circuit court held that 

Beaver's claims are not precluded by the doctrine of res judicata and this Court's decision in 

Tawney constitutes an intervening change in law. In reviewing challenges to the findings and 

conclusions of the Circuit Court, this Court should apply a two-prong deferential standard of 

review. Syl. Pt. 2, Walker v. W. Virginia Ethics Comm 'n, 201 W. Va. 108, 110,492 S.E.2d 167, 

169 (1997). This Court should review the final order and the ultimate disposition under an abuse 

of discretion standard, and review the circuit court's underlying factual findings under a clearly 

erroneous standard. [d. Questions of law are subject to a de novo review. [d. 

B. 	 BEAVER'S CLAIMS FOR THE PERIOD AFTER THE 2004 AWARD ARE NEW 
CLAIMS BASED ON FACTS AND THE LAW AFTER 2004. 

The 2004 Arbitration Award was limited to damages and those damages were 

based on the law, as perceived in 2004 by the arbitrators, and to the then existing "reasonable" 

post production costs. The Award had no precedential effect as to future royalty payments, and 
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indeed, inherent in its findings as to what was "reasonable" in 2004, the Award could not be 

projected into the future. Accordingly, Beaver's claims for damages sustained subsequent to the 

2004 Arbitration Award are new, distinct and separate from the claims that were the subject of 

the 2004 Award. Accordingly, as to this claim Beaver neither seeks to vacate or alter the 2004 

Arbitration Award. 

The 1929 Lease has now been in effect for 87 years, and if production continues, 

it could remain in effect another 87 years. Beaver is not bound in perpetuity either to the law or 

the facts as they existed in 2004. In fact, the essence of the royalty obligation on the 1929 Lease 

contemplates that "general wholesale prices" upon which royalties are calculated may change on 

a monthly basis. Similarly, to the extent costs might be deducted, the amount determined to be 

"reasonable" in 2004, could not under any interpretation of the 2004 Award, be projected forever 

as a fixed amount. 

In fact, the nature of the formula used by the arbitrators to calculate Beaver's 

damages, is unworkable with respect to future payments. In order to determine a sum-certain for 

"reasonable" post production costs the arbitrators struggled with the lack of available 

information, even at the time, but to arrive at a number considered charges made by other 

companies at the time. No legitimate argument can be advanced that the average costs 

determined in 2004 could possibly apply to the future, and there was certainly nothing in the 

Award to suggest that the arbitrators had any such intent. 

Simply put, the 2004 Award only applied through the time the arbitrators made 

their factual finding. 

As a matter of course, however, Cabot continues to deduct post-production costs 

from Beaver's royalty using the same numbers determined in 2004. The question now raised is 
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not whether the 2004 cost is reasonable, but rather, whether the claim asserted is a new claim 

applicable to the period after the 2004 Award and whether it should be determined by the law 

and facts currently in effect. 

Defendants' primary argument in their appeal is that Beaver's claims for 

underpayment of royalty require vacating an arbitration award. They argue that such action is 

precluded by Section 10 of the FAA, which bars a court from vacating an arbitration award, 

except under limited circumstances. Beaver, however, does not seek to vacate the 2004 

Arbitration Award and the Circuit Court so found. (SUPCRTOOOI86-199). 

Section 10 of the FAA is only applicable to the extent a party seeks to vacate an 

arbitration award. The 2004 Arbitration Award contemplated retroactive damages exclusively 

and, thus, does not have precedential effect as to future royalty payments. Beaver's claims for 

damages sustained subsequent to the 2004 Arbitration Award constitute a new claim and neither 

the FAA or doctrine of res judicata apply. 

The 2004 Arbitration A ward, being devoid of any reference to future damages 

and lacking any indication that the arbitration panel intended for the 2004 Arbitration Award to 

be binding into perpetuity, the Award only applies to the damage period under consideration. 

Oil, Chern. & Atomic Workers Int'l Union, Local 4-367 v. Rohm & Haas, Texas Inc., 677 F.2d 

492, 494 (5th Cir. 1982). Absent language indicating the arbitration panel's clear and 

unambiguous intention to prevent similar conduct by the offending party, the prior award will 

not be applied prospectively. Derwin v. General Dynamics Corp., 719 F.2d 484, 491 (1st Cir. 

1983). "Only where an arbitrable award is both clearly intended to have a prospective effect and 

there is no colorable basis for denying the applicability of the existing award to a dispute at hand, 

will a court order compliance with the award[.]" Id.; see also United Mine Workers Dist. No.5 v. 
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Consolidation Coal Co., 666 F.2d 806, 811 (3d Cir. 1981) (court must be able to say with 

positive assurance that arbitrator intended award have prospective effect). Expanding the scope 

of an award by applying it to future royalty disputes makes that award precedential. An award's 

precedential effect, however, must be detennined by an arbitrator and not a court. New Orleans 

S.s. Ass 'n v. Gen. Longshore Workers, 626 F.2d 455, 468 (5th Cir. 1980) ("Whether the award 

can be given an effect akin to res judicata or stare decisis with regard to future disputes that may 

arise between the parties, neither the district court nor this court should decide."); Courier

Citizen Co. v. Boston Electrotypers Union No. 11, Int'l Printing & Graphic Commc 'ns Union of 

N. Am., 702 F.2d 273, 280 (1st Cir. 1983) ("Courts have generally refused to rule on the 

precedential effect of an arbitration award on future awards, taking the position that the question 

is properly resolved through arbitration."); see also Oil Workers International Union v. Rohm & 

Haas, Texas, Inc., 677 F.2d 492,494 (5th Cir.1982). 

Here, the 2004 Arbitration Award, rendered over twelve years ago, contains no 

indicia that the award was meant to have precedential effect. At that time, the wells at issue were 

certainly expected to produce long into the future, and they have. The 2004 Arbitration Award 

was not only devoid of any suggestion of having prospective application, but it is inconceivable 

that the arbitration panel intended to bind the parties to a sum-certain deduction in "reasonable" 

perpetuity. The landscape of the oil and gas industry is ever changing as is the law. As such, 

Cabot's post-production costs are certain to vary over time. It is, thus, implausible that the 

arbitration panel intended to bind the parties to a sum-certain deduction amount for so long as the 

wells produce. 

For these reasons, the 2004 Arbitration Award is not prospective in nature and 

does not serve as controlling precedent for future royalty payments under the 1929 Lease. For 
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this claim, Beaver does not seek to vacate or modify the 2004 Arbitration Award. Accordingly, 

Beaver's claim with respect to damages accruing after the 2004 Arbitration Agreement is not 

precluded, as Cabot contends, by Section 10 of the FAA. 

Conversely, to the extent the 2004 Arbitration Award is interpreted as binding 

into perpetuity, the provision providing for "reasonable" post-production royalty deductions 

should be applied consistent with current law. Under current law, and given the operative lease 

language, no amount ofpost-production royalty deductions is presently considered "reasonable." 

c. BEAVER'S CLAIMS FOR THE PERIOD PRIOR TO THE 2004 AWARD. 

Beaver also seeks a review of the 2004 Arbitration Award and to enforce it 

consistent with current law. Unlike Beaver's claim for damages after the 2004 Arbitration 

Award, this claim requires a detennination if the doctrine of res judicata bars the claim and also 

whether the FAA either (i) applies to the claim, and, if so, (ii) whether it constitutes a bar. 

With respect to royalties due and payable prior to July 27,2004, Beaver is entitled 

to additional sums owed based on current law. Rather than vacate or modify the 2004 

Arbitration Award, Beaver seeks to enforce the award's operative language consistent with 

current law. Because Beaver does not seek to vacate or modify the 2004 Arbitration Award, 

Section 10 of the FAA does not apply. 

Since the arbitration panel's ruling, the teml "reasonable" has taken on new 

meaning and the ability to deduct at all has changed. This Court's decision in Tawney represents 

a sea-change with respect to the calculation of royalties in oil and gas leases. Pursuant to this 

Court's decision in Tawney, and given the operative royalty language contained in the 1929 

Lease, no amount of post-production royalty deductions is presently considered "reasonable" or 

allowed. Therefore, Beaver seeks to interpret and enforce the operative language of the 2004 
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Arbitration Award consistent with what is presently considered "reasonable" or permissible 

under current law. Because Beaver seeks to enforce, rather than vacate the 2004 Arbitration 

Award, Section 10 of the FAA does not apply. 

To the extent the relief sought by Beaver requires a vacation or modification of 

portions of the 2004 Arbitration, the FAA is nonetheless inapplicable. The FAA only applies to 

"contract[s] evidencing a transaction involving commerce ..." 9 U.S.C.A. § 2. The statute 

further defines "commerce" to include "commerce among the several States." 9 U.S.C.A. § 1. 

The FAA's application, thus, turns on whether Cabot's performance under the 1929 Lease 

involves a transaction in interstate commerce. 

Defendants state that the Lease is governed by the FAA because it is an 

agreement between two diverse parties and involves the production and sale of natural gas in 

interstate commerce. While the Lease is between diverse parties, the Lease does not contemplate 

the sale of natural gas in interstate commerce. In fact, diversity of the parties is the only indicia 

of interstate commerce. 

The issue of whether an oil and gas lease is governed by the FAA has been 

addressed by the United States District Court for the Northern District of West Virginia. See 

Heller v. TriEnergy, Inc., 877 F. Supp. 2d 414,429 (N.D. W. Va. 2012). There, the district court 

briefly concluded that "the contract at issue is related to interstate commerce, as it was formed 

between citizens of different states for oil and gas exploration using materials likely to be 

transported in interstate commerce." Id. Whether a lease contemplates interstate commerce, 

however, is highly fact dependent and requires a case-specific analysis. 

So analyzed, at the time the Lease was executed in 1929, it is doubtful the parties 

contemplated the sale of natural gas into interstate commerce, much less governance by the 
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FAA. This Lease grants Cabot the rights to drill, operate wells, and install well lines, meters and 

associated facilities on the leased premises, which lies wholly within this State's borders. The 

Lease contemplates the payment of a royalty, which is based on the general wholesale market 

price at the wellhead. In 1983, Cabot (albeit in violation ofthe terms of the Lease) transferred all 

lease lines and pipelines to Cranberry Pipeline Company, so that, at all relevant times Cabot's 

operations have been confined to the leased premises. (SUPCRT000862-895). By Cabot's own 

statements, all sales of gas are made by a separate company, Cabot Marketing Company, and 

transportation of gas is done by Cranberry. (SUPCRT000965-968). To the extent gas from 

Beaver's property is moved from the property, Cranberry'S system is purely intrastate. 

(SUPCRT000862-895). Evidence in this case shows that significant volumes of gas are sold to 

local distribution and utility systems, such as Mountaineer Gas 1; however, there is no evidence 

that Cabot has dominion over any gas from Beaver's property after it enters the Cranberry 

pipeline, or if it did have any dominion after the gas left the property, whether any of Beaver's 

gas is sold in interstate commerce. 

In fact, the only evidence introduced at the evidentiary hearing in this case or in 

the volumes of documents introduce as evidence was that Cabot's performance under the lease 

was limited to the leased premises and that sales of Beaver's gas occurred locally. Thus, in eight 

years of litigation Cabot has submitted no evidence that its operations under the 1929 Lease in 

any way involved interstate commerce or that Beaver's gas, or indeed, any gas in Cranberry's 

intrastate pipeline is sold in interstate commerce. Moreover, no proof exists as to who, as among 

Cabot, Cabot Marketing or Cranberry, owned or controlled the gas. In addition, Beaver's royalty 

is based on the general wholesale price of gas rather than a sale price. Thus, the prices obtained 

I See SUPCRT001477-1484. 
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for Beaver's gas by Cabot Marketing, Cranberry, or whoever may have controlled it, are 

irrelevant to Beaver, as the royalty is based on an objective standard, the wholesale price 

available from time to time. At the 2004 Arbitration, expert testimony was used to establish 

these prices. Thus, the issues involved in the 2004 Arbitration were limited to Cabot's 

operations on the leased premises, and even these ended at a meter within the leased premises 

where the volume of gas subject to royalty was measured. No contract exists between Beaver 

and Cranberry, and to the extent Cranberry assumed control of Beaver's gas on the leased 

premises, its activity and what it may have done with Beaver's gas was not the subject of the 

2004 Arbitration. 

This Court must rule on the record established. That record establishes that all 

"transactions" under the 1929 Lease that were the subject of the 2004 Arbitration were intrastate. 

Conversely, nothing in the record in any way shows that a transaction in interstate commerce 

occurred. Absent such a showing, the FAA simply does not apply. 

D. BEAVER'S CLAIMS ARE NOT PRECLUDED BY THE DOCTRINE OF RES 
JUDICATA. 

Defendants assert that Beaver's claims for underpayment of royalties are barred 

by the doctrine of res judicata on the grounds that Beaver is attempting to re-litigate issues 

which were decided by arbitration in 2004. Beaver recognizes that res judicata generally bars 

the re-litigation of issues and also that the doctrine applies to arbitration awards. Res judicata, 

however, is an equitable remedy, and as such, it allows certain exceptions, one of which is an 

intervening change in law. 

On two occasions, the Circuit Court ruled that Beaver's claims for underpayment 

of royalty are not barred by res judicata. The issue of res judicata was raised by Defendants in 

their Motion to Dismiss, which was denied by the circuit court's order, dated July 13, 2010. 
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Therein, the circuit court correctly held that res judicata is inapplicable where, as in the present 

case, there is an intervening change in law between the first and second suits. Specifically, the 

Circuit Court held that this Court's decision in Tawney, coupled with the settlement terms of the 

Cabot Class Action, constituted new law such that res judicata did not apply to bar Beaver's 

claims for underpayment of royalties. (See July l3, 2010, Order.) (SUPCRT000186-199) 

Again, by final order dated August 25,2016, the circuit court held that Beaver's claims were not 

precluded by the doctrine of res judicata. The circuit court reasoned that "Tawny [sic] represents

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